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       1                        P R O C E E D I N G S

       2                 MR. CASEY:  Okay.  I think we can get started.

       3       I'd like to welcome everyone to the TASA meeting this

       4       afternoon.  And the first thing I would like to do is

       5       ask Ms. Cindy Miller to read the legal notice.

       6                 MS. MILLER:  Pursuant to notice issued in

       7       Docket Number 040763-TP, this time and date and place

       8       were set for a meeting of the Telecommunications Access

       9       System Advisory Committee.

      10                 MR. CASEY:  Thank you.

      11                 My name is Bob Casey.  And, of course, to my

      12       left, as I mentioned, this is Cindy Miller.  She handles

      13       all the legal matters for Relay.  And now I'd like to

      14       get a list of the participants, and I'm going to start

      15       on the phone.  And I have Cheryl Rhodes on the phone,

      16       Jon Ziev, Demetria Clark, and Dottie Cartrite from

      17       Sprint.

      18                 Is there anyone else on the phone?  Okay.  We

      19       can take the appearances here, please.

      20                 MS. SIRIANNI:  Hi.  Maryrose Sirianni, AT&T.

      21                 MR. FORSTALL:  James Forstall with Florida

      22       Telecommunications Relay.

      23                 MR. LITTLEWOOD:  Chris Littlewood with the

      24       Florida Coordinating Council for the Deaf and

      25       Hard-of-hearing.
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       1                 MS. SCHUR:  Kim Schur representing the Deaf

       2       Service Centers.

       3                 MR. CASEY:  Okay.  And we have Missy McManus

       4       from Sprint Relay.  And I believe Kim Schur has joined

       5       us on the phone.  Is that correct, Kim?

       6                 MS. SCHUR:  That's correct.  I'm here.

       7                 MR. CASEY:  All righty.  Good afternoon.

       8                 MS. SCHUR:  Good afternoon.

       9                 MR. CASEY:  Okay.  I want to start out just

      10       going over the agenda real quick.  I'm going to start

      11       out by giving FCC, PSC, and legislative updates.  We're

      12       going to be asking for any advisory committee comments

      13       on the draft Relay RFP that was issued, and these

      14       comments will only be allowed from the advisory

      15       committee itself, not from any companies.

      16                 James Forstall will be doing an FTRI

      17       presentation, and Missy McManus will follow-up with the

      18       Sprint Relay presentation, and then at the end we can

      19       handle any other business comments or questions.

      20                 TASA committee members Kim Schur, Cheryl

      21       Rhodes, Jon Ziev, and Demetria Clark are on the phone,

      22       along with Dottie Cartrite of Sprint.  A lot of you here

      23       will see an empty chair up here.  That used to be Ray

      24       Kennedy's chair.  Lucky Ray has retired as of

      25       September 30th after many years with the Commission.
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       1       There will be a couple of other staff helping us on the

       2       Relay program.  Laura King and Curtis Williams will

       3       begin working on the Relay issues with Cindy Miller

       4       and I.

       5                 A transcript will be made of today's meeting,

       6       and it will be provided to all the TASA committee

       7       members.  Please make sure your microphone is on when

       8       speaking.  The green light should be on.  And please

       9       silence your cell phones for today's meeting.  And this

      10       is very important, please state your name before

      11       speaking so we know who's making comments for the

      12       record.  We do have a court reporter here who will be

      13       making a transcript, and we want to make sure to get

      14       your name.  And for committee members who will be

      15       claiming travel costs, please make sure to fill out your

      16       travel reimbursement form.

      17                 This next slide is just a listing of the

      18       current members of the advisory committee.  And we can

      19       go right into the FCC and PSC updates.  This is just a

      20       slide that I always include to remind people when you

      21       see an FCC order, if it has FCC preceding the number,

      22       that means that it was decided by the full commission.

      23       If you see a DA preceding the number on the order, that

      24       means it was issued by the office or bureau by delegated

      25       authority.  That's what the DA means, delegated
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       1       authority.

       2                 There was an order released June 23rd awarding

       3       Rolka Loube Saltzer Associates -- I hope I announced

       4       that right -- a contract to administer the interstate

       5       TRS support services.  As you probably remember, the

       6       former TRS fund administrator was the National Exchange

       7       Carrier Association.  And as of Friday, July 1st, RLSA

       8       began overseeing collections and distributions from the

       9       Interstate TRS Fund in its role as the new

      10       administrator.

      11                 On June 30th the FCC issued another order.

      12       This time it was announcing the compensation rates for

      13       all the different Relay; traditional TRS,

      14       speech-to-speech, captioned telephone service, IP

      15       captioned telephone service, and VRS.

      16                 Another order was issued July 28th, and this

      17       was regarding Internet TRS providers and certification.

      18       The FCC wants to make sure that everyone is certified

      19       that's going to be working on VRS.

      20                 Order FCC 11-150 was released October 7th, and

      21       this adopted rules to implement the 21st Century

      22       Communications and Video Accessibility Act.  And what

      23       this does is add VoIP providers, interconnected and

      24       noninterconnected, to the requirement of participating

      25       in and contributing to the Interstate TRS Fund.
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       1                 On October 21st the FCC issued an order saying

       2       that it will accept applications to conduct national

       3       outreach efforts related to the National Deaf/Blind

       4       Equipment Distribution Program, and they will be taking

       5       applications until December 20th.  And what they are

       6       looking for is entities that have significant experience

       7       with and expertise in conducting outreach and working

       8       with members of the deaf/blind committee.  And as you

       9       may remember, at the last TASA meeting, I announced that

      10       Florida's allocations for the National Deaf/Blind

      11       Equipment Distribution Program will be $458,832 per

      12       year.

      13                 Going to the PSC updates.  The PSC issued an

      14       order May 27th approving the FTRI budget for 2011/2012.

      15       The Commission did reduce FTRI's proposed operating

      16       expenses by $651,000, and approved a budget maintaining

      17       the 11-cent surcharge for the fiscal year 2011/2012.

      18                 On September 20th of this year, the Commission

      19       considered a staff recommendation for a provider of

      20       Relay service in Florida beginning June 1st, 2012.  The

      21       Commission denied staff's recommendation and directed

      22       staff to rebid the contract.

      23                 On October 18th, PSC staff sent a copy of the

      24       new Florida Relay request for proposal to the TASA

      25       committee to allow for review and any input the
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       1       committee may have on the RFP.  We believe that's an

       2       invaluable resource for us.  An RFP workshop was held

       3       October 25th to receive input relating to the draft RFP

       4       from potential bidders.  Sprint Relay, AT&T Relay, and

       5       Hamilton Relay all participated in the workshop.

       6                 Kevin Bloom is the chair of the new RFP

       7       proposal review committee and Cindy Miller is the

       8       attorney for the RFP.  On this go-around with the RFP,

       9       we are going to have all new evaluators, and, of course,

      10       there is a new chair.  Ray Kennedy was the last chair.

      11                 We have a legislative update.  On

      12       September 19th, Senate Bill 272 was filed by Senator

      13       Wise regarding Section 427, Florida Statutes, and the

      14       draft bill provides for the following:  It requires the

      15       PSC to establish a recovery mechanism that requires

      16       wireless providers to impose a TASA monthly TRS

      17       surcharge on its subscribers.  It provides for the

      18       distribution of wireless mobile devices to qualified

      19       persons, requires the PSC annually ensure that public

      20       safety and healthcare providers are complying with the

      21       requirement to purchase and operate telecommunications

      22       devices for the deaf or any other appropriate

      23       telecommunications devices, and submit a report of its

      24       findings to the advisory committee.  It also changes the

      25       language in the statute from hearing impaired to
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       1       deaf/hard-of-hearing.

       2                 (Inaudible comment.)

       3                 I agree.  It updates some definitions in

       4       Section 427.703, and updates the structure and

       5       membership of the TASA advisory committee by updating

       6       the names of some of the entities.

       7                 On October 4th, the bill was referred to the

       8       communications, energy, and public utilities committee,

       9       and also the budget committee.  And as of now, there is

      10       no companion bill that has been filed in the Florida

      11       House.

      12                 As you may know, there's an association called

      13       the National Association for State Relay Administration,

      14       NASRA, of which we are members.  And basically it's all

      15       the state relay administrators from all 50 states.  And

      16       I'm pleased to announce that NASRA, for the first time,

      17       has chosen Florida for their 2012 annual conference.  It

      18       will be held at the Windham Lakes Hotel at Walt Disney

      19       World in Orlando from October 22nd to the 24th, 2012.

      20                 That conference will be preceded by the

      21       Telecommunications Equipment Distribution Program

      22       Association, or TEDPA, Annual Conference at the same

      23       hotel October 16th through the 20th.  James Forstall of

      24       FTRI is presently the chair of TEDPA, and we have worked

      25       and nagged NASRA to come to Florida for a number of
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       1       years and finally they've done it.

       2                 These tables here are the same tables I

       3       provide at each TASA meeting to give you some idea of

       4       where the minutes are going.  I know Missy will have

       5       more information on this, more detailed information, but

       6       I just wanted to show you the trend.  Regular TRS

       7       minutes and CapTel minutes are showing a slight decline.

       8       This table, of course, puts them together.  I put them

       9       together to see if they are declining at the same rate.

      10                 These are the IP-Relay minutes and Florida VRS

      11       minutes, and it's only as of November 2010.  The new

      12       interstate TRS administrator will not be keeping track

      13       of this anymore.  I'm guessing as a cost savings.

      14                 And this shows what is happening to TRS,

      15       IP-Relay, VRS, captioned telephone service, and IP

      16       captioned telephone service for the whole country.  And

      17       as you can see, the number one growth is VRS, followed

      18       by captioned telephone service, with IP-Relay and TRS

      19       showing a downward decline.  And, again, as I said

      20       before, Missy will have some more information on that

      21       for us.

      22                 The next thing I'd like to ask for is if the

      23       advisory committee has any comments on the draft Relay

      24       RFP.

      25                 MS. MILLER:  If it would be helpful, I could
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       1       mention some of the changes that we're looking at in the

       2       draft request for proposals.  And we will be going to

       3       the November 22nd Commission agenda with this revised

       4       draft.

       5                 We are looking at having more objective

       6       criteria, a more realistically weighting of basic Relay

       7       and captioned telephone Relay, including points for the

       8       offering of a call center in Florida, addressing lower

       9       liquidated damages in certain instances, changing the

      10       weighting of the technical part of the proposal to

      11       50 percent rather than 60 percent, so that the technical

      12       part will be 50 percent and the pricing part will be

      13       50 percent.

      14                 We're looking at a number of other options

      15       such as having something called signature of acceptance.

      16       We are trying to take some of the more subjective

      17       analysis out, and also not require as much to be filed

      18       by the bidder and not requiring as much to be reviewed

      19       by the evaluator.  And I think that covers some of the

      20       key areas.

      21                 MR. CASEY:  Okay.  Does anyone from the

      22       committee have any suggestions or comments on the RFP?

      23                 MR. FORSTALL:  I have a question.

      24                 MR. CASEY:  James, go ahead.

      25                 MR. FORSTALL:  I have a question.  The second
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       1       bid go-around, will it be open to anyone, once again, or

       2       is it restricted to the same previous bidders the first

       3       time around?

       4                 MR. CASEY:  I'm going to defer to Cindy,

       5       because she's handling the RFP along with Kevin.

       6                 MS. MILLER:  It is totally open.  At our

       7       bidders workshop, we noticed that only three bidders

       8       came, but it is totally open.

       9                 MR. CASEY:  Any other questions or comments?

      10                 Chris Littlewood has a comment.

      11                 MR. LITTLEWOOD:  I'm not sure that I have a

      12       completely lucid response related to why, but I'm not

      13       sure I agree with reducing the weight of the technical

      14       proposal from 60 to 50 percent, and that being the

      15       equivalent to price.  I just want to go on record as

      16       saying that.

      17                 MR. CASEY:  Do you believe it should be

      18       60 percent, maintained at 60 percent?

      19                 MR. LITTLEWOOD:  Yes.  I kind of do think that

      20       it should still be 60 percent.

      21                 MR. CASEY:  Okay.  Go ahead, Chris.

      22                 MR. LITTLEWOOD:  I guess my comment would be,

      23       if there is a question as far as in the evaluator

      24       comments that the numbers are too arbitrary for weighing

      25       for the technical proposals, that there might be
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       1       additional criteria established for how they should be

       2       weighed.  But I think it's important for serving the

       3       deaf and hard-of-hearing community in the state of

       4       Florida that service is probably greater than just

       5       price.  Because we are talking about functional

       6       equivalency of communications for the deaf and

       7       hard-of-hearing population in the state of Florida, and

       8       I realize it's sometimes expensive, but I don't think it

       9       should just be based on price.

      10                 MR. CASEY:  Thank you.  Those are great

      11       comments.

      12                 As Cindy noted, we did add in a Relay center,

      13       in-state Relay center.  Do you believe that an in-state

      14       Relay center -- or do you have any comments on an

      15       in-state Relay center versus a non-in-state, or out of

      16       state?

      17                 MS. MILLER:  If I could just insert here, this

      18       is just staff looking at it right now, so this is just a

      19       draft.  I should note that when the recommendation is

      20       filed with the Commission it might look different, but

      21       it is something that was brought up at the September

      22       agenda, and we are looking at that.

      23                 MR. ZIEV:  Okay.  And this is Jon.

      24                 MR. CASEY:  Go ahead, Jon.

      25                 MR. ZIEV:  I do have a comment about the
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       1       interstate.  My concern primarily is that if we give it

       2       over to the state, I would prefer that those in the

       3       northern part of the state be able to have control over

       4       that.  I do recall that when we had a call center in the

       5       south, in Miami, way back in the day, there were a lot

       6       of people who had complained about the quality of the

       7       voicing aspect of the interpreting services.  Because I

       8       understand that a lot of South Florida were hiring those

       9       with a thick accent, and it became very confusing.

      10       There were a lot of complaints about that back then.  I

      11       do recall that situation and hearing all of those

      12       complaints.  So I would like to propose that we make

      13       sure that it is in an appropriate area for equal access

      14       for quality purposes.

      15                 MR. CASEY:  Once again, I would like to

      16       mention that this is just a proposal that is out there.

      17       It's in the draft RFP.  It may or may not be in the

      18       final RFP.  We just wanted input from the committee as

      19       to what they thought of it.  We did have --

      20                 MR. ZIEV:  And that's my input.

      21                 MR. CASEY:  And I appreciate that.

      22                 MR. ZIEV:  I would prefer that it would be in

      23       the northern part of the state.

      24                 MR. CASEY:  Yes.  If it's in the RFP and if

      25       the Commission chooses to do that.  And we thank you for
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       1       those comments.

       2                 We did have two Relay centers historically,

       3       one was in Miami, and the last one was in Jacksonville,

       4       just for informational purposes.

       5                 MR. ZIEV:  Correct.

       6                 MR. CASEY:  Okay.  Any other comments?

       7                 MR. ZIEV:  I remember that Jacksonville had a

       8       lot less complaints with the quality of the calls.  It

       9       was more successful.  I do recall reading the statistics

      10       and the reports on that.

      11                 MR. CASEY:  Thank you.

      12                 Any other comments or suggestions from the

      13       committee?  In that case, we can move on and we can

      14       start with FTRI's updates.

      15                 Chris, did you have a comment.

      16                 MR. LITTLEWOOD:  Bob, this is Chris.  Wasn't

      17       it -- in the original RFP was there a request for an

      18       in-state call center, was that part of the original RFP,

      19       or to bid both ways?

      20                 MS. MILLER:  In this year's RFP there was not

      21       a requirement for a call center in Florida, and, also,

      22       there was not a listing of it for points.  However, my

      23       understanding is that in 2004 there was a requirement

      24       for it to be in-state.

      25                 We're changing computers.
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       1                 (Pause.)

       2                 MR. CASEY:  Okay.  We're ready to go now.

       3       James will be starting his FTRI presentation.

       4                 MR. FORSTALL:  Good afternoon, everybody.  I

       5       want to thank you for allowing FTRI to be here to make a

       6       presentation.  And I apologize for the mix-up, because I

       7       had made some modifications to my presentation between

       8       the time I sent the original to Bob and today.  So for

       9       those of you who may be viewing the handout or an older

      10       file, you will see a little bit of a difference in this

      11       presentation.  Not much, but a little bit.

      12                 I will be reporting on the results since the

      13       last TASA meeting on the annual results from FTRI's

      14       equipment distribution program that started July 1st,

      15       2010, and ended on June 30th, 2011.

      16                 Up first is client services.  The total number

      17       of equipment distribution program services provided by

      18       FTRI for fiscal year 2010 and '11 was 52,217 services.

      19       The average number of services provided monthly was

      20       4,351.  As you will notice, almost 47 percent of the

      21       services provided were strictly new clients, clients

      22       coming into the program for the first time.  And

      23       modified, less than 2 percent, is when a person who has

      24       received a certain piece of equipment and for some

      25       reason decides to modify it or change it to a different
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       1       type of equipment.  It could be because their hearing

       2       loss -- their hearing may have changed, or the equipment

       3       they got originally may be too complicated, whatever the

       4       case is, we call it a modify.  We classify it as a

       5       modify, because when a person modifies the equipment,

       6       they do need new training all over again.  So we

       7       consider that a modified.

       8                 Exchanges is almost 40 percent, which is a

       9       little high than the norm.  And this is when a person

      10       has, for instance, an amplified telephone and they might

      11       be going from amplified telephone to amplified

      12       telephone.  So basically all that is needed in that

      13       particular service is to swap the phone out and just

      14       complete the paperwork.  No extra training is necessary

      15       or needed for that.

      16                 Return is just under 11 percent, and this is

      17       when a person may move out of the state.  They decide

      18       they no longer want to participate in the program and so

      19       they return the equipment back to FTRI.

      20                 And follow-up, less than 2 percent, and that

      21       is where any other services that are necessary to

      22       provide a client that is not covered under the new

      23       modified exchange or return.  If a client needs

      24       additional training, it will be considered a follow-up

      25       service.
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       1                 And here is a graph of the number of clients

       2       served over the last four years.  And you can see in

       3       fiscal year ending 2011, this is where we saw a sizeable

       4       increase over the previous year.

       5                 Next.  New client eligibility.  We served

       6       24,399 new clients during this period.  And here is a

       7       breakdown of the different types of eligibility groups.

       8       We have deaf, 21; hard-of-hearing, 24,218;

       9       speech-impaired, 144; and dual sensory impaired, which

      10       would be considered who is someone who is deaf/blind,

      11       16.  The total is 24,399.

      12                 Next.  Again, here is a graph that shows the

      13       difference in previous years services and totals, and

      14       you will notice, again, that we did have a sizeable

      15       increase over previous years.  From last year to this

      16       year we saw a 34 percent increase of new clients.  And

      17       we contribute the increase primarily to two things that

      18       have taken place during the last year.  Newspaper

      19       advertisements, in previous years we had spent most of

      20       the outreach dollars on advertising on cable television,

      21       and we decided to take that money and put it into

      22       newspaper ads advertising throughout the state.  And we

      23       have seen a very, very positive response from that.  And

      24       we are continuing doing that this year.

      25                 Next slide.  These are the certifiers.  FTRI
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       1       has eight different groups of certifiers that are able

       2       to certify the application attesting to the fact that

       3       the person does have a hearing loss.  Of course, the top

       4       is the deaf service center directors.  These are

       5       associated with the regional distribution centers.  FTRI

       6       had 23 regional distribution centers throughout the

       7       state, and the directors of those centers are eligible

       8       to certify the applications attesting to the fact that

       9       the person does have a hearing loss.

      10                 Audiologists and hearing aid specialists

      11       continue to play a major role.  At one point

      12       audiologists and hearing aid specialists were the top

      13       certifiers.  But now with the advertisement of the

      14       newspaper -- and what I did forget to mention was the

      15       other reason why we have seen an increase is the RDCs

      16       are making a concerted effort to go out to the community

      17       as opposed to waiting for the client to come into their

      18       center.

      19                 Next.  The next slide is new client age group,

      20       which shows a breakdown of the age of our clientele.

      21       And as you can see, the 80 to 89 age bracket is the

      22       number one, the largest group who are served.

      23                 Next.  Yes.

      24                 MS. McMANUS:  Did you say 100 to 109 years

      25       old.  What?
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       1                 MR. FORSTALL:  Missy had asked me -- said that

       2       she was surprised that we had as many clients in the

       3       100 to 109 bracket, which is 106.  Yes.  And every year

       4       when those numbers come out, I double and triple check

       5       that, because sometimes computer error, data entry

       6       errors can contribute to that being a large number.  But

       7       it is, in fact, a true figure because people are living

       8       longer these days.

       9                 Next.  These are a few of the counties that

      10       have a large number of clients served.  We do have

      11       services provided in all 67 counties throughout the

      12       state.  Now, that does not mean that FTRI has a regional

      13       distribution center located in all 67 counties.  A lot

      14       of the RDCs cover several counties in their area.

      15                 Anyone that lives in a remote area not near a

      16       regional distribution center, FTRI will serve them from

      17       our headquarters.  If they will mail the application to

      18       our office, we will contact the clients and make sure

      19       that they are getting the appropriate equipment to match

      20       their needs, and then we will ship it to them.

      21                 The next slide.  Number of equipment

      22       distributed.  FTRI distributes both new and refurbished

      23       equipment.  However, just so you know, the refurbished

      24       equipment is made to like new.  So any time we have

      25       equipment that needs to be refurbished, we require that
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       1       it be repaired or refurbished to like new.

       2                 We distributed 48,047 pieces of equipment last

       3       year, which the average is about 4,000.  As you can see,

       4       VCPH, which is 92.3 percent of the total pieces of

       5       equipment, are amplified telephones.  Another reason why

       6       we have seen an increase in new clients is because when

       7       we advertise in the newspaper, and I think I have a

       8       slide that shows a copy of the ad, is that we use the

       9       cordless telephone.  And a lot of people want the

      10       mobility with the cordless amplified telephone, and I

      11       think that attracted a lot of people to the program.

      12                 Next.  And here is a chart of the last five

      13       years of equipment distributed.  And, of course, you can

      14       see we had a large increase last year.

      15                 Next.  Some of the other services that were

      16       provided by FTRI during the last fiscal year, we

      17       processed 16,252 customer service calls.  We mailed

      18       1,536 applications to individuals requesting them.  When

      19       a client calls FTRI, the first thing we do is ask them

      20       where they live and where they reside.  If they live in

      21       an area that has a regional distribution center, the

      22       first thing we do is refer them back to that area.  If a

      23       client does not live near one, we will mail the

      24       application.  And sometimes, sometimes it happens, but

      25       not too often, if a client lives in a regional
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       1       distribution center area, an RDC area, but for some

       2       reason they are unable to go, we will mail the client

       3       the application, and we can ship it to them if that is

       4       what they request.

       5                 We also processed over 181,702 forms, and that

       6       is the different types of forms that are submitted with

       7       the new client or any types of service that we provide.

       8       We process all those internally in FTRI.

       9                 We also had 28 new businesses join up with the

      10       FTRI educational program, the business partnership

      11       program, and that is entirely through the website.

      12                 We conducted 1,890 off-site distributions.

      13       And, once again, that contributed to the increase in the

      14       new clientele.  With the economy the way it has been the

      15       last few years, people are not -- are preferring not to

      16       travel as much.  So when they find out a particular

      17       distribution may be closer to their home, they will wait

      18       until that time to go get served.  So we are going out

      19       to the clients more, and we are finding that to be very,

      20       very beneficial.

      21                 Other important facts.  We continue to provide

      22       education and training to the RDCs.  We continue to

      23       place a high priority on protecting the integrity of the

      24       client information in our database.  We operated within

      25       budget requirements.  And our auditor, external auditors
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       1       have given us high marks for our internal controls.

       2                 Next.  Quality assurance.  Every year we

       3       report in our annual report the information about

       4       quality assurance.  And the reason we do this is we want

       5       to make sure that the clients are very satisfied with

       6       the services they receive from FTRI and the regional

       7       distribution centers.  And on occasion, we have the

       8       ability through our database to pick a particular event

       9       that an RDC may have gone to an off-site distribution,

      10       and we can issue 100 percent QA cards for that

      11       particular event, and that is good information and data

      12       for FTRI's internal audit as well as the regional

      13       distribution centers.  It just informs us that the

      14       services are continuing to be provided as we requested,

      15       the quality assurance.  And should there be -- any

      16       negative response that we get, we refer them back to the

      17       regional distribution centers so they can take care of

      18       that.  They will follow-up with the client to find out

      19       what the issue was and resolve it.

      20                 Next.  Outreach, as I said, played a major

      21       role on seeing an increase in new clients from previous

      22       years.  557 outreach activities were performed by the

      23       RDCs and FTRI throughout the state last year.  Any time

      24       a regional distribution center wants to do an outreach

      25       activity, they must go into the FTRI database and enter
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       1       in information that will be posted on the calendar for

       2       the public site so that everyone can see what is going

       3       on as well as approved funding for the outreach

       4       activities that take place.

       5                 Any time a center relocates to a different

       6       location, we will mail a new location postcard to those

       7       clients letting them know the new location to where they

       8       can go to get -- receive services.  And we also did

       9       newspaper advertisements throughout the year.  We also

      10       develop a monthly e-newsletter for the RDC staff where

      11       we notify them of tips and pointers to help them do a

      12       better job in their area.

      13                 Next.  This is an example of the new location

      14       postcard that was sent out.

      15                 Next.  And we did advertise on the cable

      16       networks.  We advertised Florida Relay 711 in both

      17       English and Spanish throughout the whole year.  And we

      18       worked with the Florida Cable Association, so when we

      19       approached them, we wanted it aired it throughout the

      20       state.  And they matched, as well.  I think they gave it

      21       an 8-to-1 ratio match.

      22                 This is an example of the newspaper ad that we

      23       ran.  As you can see, we used the cordless phone.  It's

      24       an amplified cordless phone.  And this particular ad, we

      25       ran it in Broward County, and we have two regional
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       1       distribution centers there, so we listed both centers

       2       with the contact information.  We like to leave it up to

       3       the client to decide where they want to go for services.

       4       If they call our office, we will give them a choice of

       5       either center they wish to go to.  And we did this ad in

       6       both color and black and white.

       7                 Next.  We also developed web banners.  So if a

       8       particular business wants to advertise the FTRI program

       9       on their website, we developed the banners.  So all they

      10       have to do is go to our website, and we will give them a

      11       log-in and they can go and select any type of banner

      12       that may work well on their website and they can just

      13       upload it.

      14                 Next.  This is a picture or a slide of the

      15       e-newsletter that I had mentioned earlier that we sent

      16       to specifically to the regional distribution centers.

      17       It's longer than that.  This is just a snapshot of the

      18       first part of it.  And what we also like to do is any

      19       time we get feedback from the clients, positive

      20       feedback, we list them.  You can see comments from our

      21       quality assurance cards on the left-hand column in the

      22       bottom.  It's nice.  The centers like to know that their

      23       services are appreciated, and people really do benefit

      24       from our program.

      25                 Next.  We have not had any changes to our
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       1       regional distribution centers in the last year.  It has

       2       pretty much stayed the same.  And we have 23 locations.

       3       Even though the last center may say 26, anytime we -- a

       4       center may have at one time been a regional distribution

       5       center for FTRI and for some reason they may no longer

       6       be, we do not reassign that number to another center

       7       because we want to keep the data separate.  So you'll

       8       see number one is missing.  Number one used to be with

       9       the Miami regional distribution center, so we will not

      10       use that number again.  So we have 23 active regional

      11       distribution centers.

      12                 Next.  FTRI continues to maintain its status

      13       as an administrative center, concentrating on oversight

      14       of the RDC contractors and equipment vendors.  The FTRI

      15       administrative office directly serves approximately

      16       20 percent of Florida's residents statewide.  Since the

      17       inception of the equipment distribution program in 1986,

      18       over 455,000 residents have been provided with

      19       telecommunications equipment and support services.

      20                 Any questions?  I'll be happy to answer them.

      21                 MR. CASEY:  Any questions for FTRI, or

      22       comments?  I do have one.  The National Deaf/Blind

      23       Equipment Distribution Program, will FTRI -- is FTRI

      24       going to apply as the administrator for the state of

      25       Florida?
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       1                 MR. FORSTALL:  Yes.  It is our intention to

       2       apply for certification with the FCC to be the

       3       distributor of the National Deaf/Blind Equipment

       4       Distribution Program in Florida.  And the deadline for

       5       that is November 21st, so we have not applied at this

       6       point.  And the reason I haven't applied is because I

       7       just attended a conference, a national conference this

       8       past week, and I went there for information gathering,

       9       and we will most likely apply within the next two weeks.

      10                 MR. CASEY:  Will the equipment that's being

      11       offered to the deaf/blind be different from what you

      12       have now?  Will you be adding any kind of different

      13       equipment?

      14                 MR. FORSTALL:  Yes.  That's part of the

      15       concerns some of the states have is because right now

      16       FTRI only distributes the deaf/blind communicator, and

      17       that is a TTY that was designed specifically for

      18       individuals who can read Braille.  And the other

      19       equipment that will be eligible under this program will

      20       be any equipment that a deaf/blind individual requests,

      21       based on their needs.  And that is where we are going to

      22       probably partner with another agency to assist us with

      23       assessing the needs and finding the right type of

      24       equipment to match with that particular client.

      25                 MR. CASEY:  And, of course, you would probably
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       1       want input.  We do have a Florida Association for the

       2       Deaf/Blind, too, and you would want to receive their

       3       input, too, I'm sure.

       4                 MR. FORSTALL:  That is true.  We have already

       5       been talking with them.  The various program --

       6                 (Inaudible; simultaneous conversation.)

       7                 MR. CASEY:  Go ahead.

       8                 MS. RHODES:  One second, please.

       9                 Yes.  Hi, this is Cheryl, again.  I'm the

      10       representative for the Florida Deaf/Blind Association.

      11       Two weeks ago we had a meeting in South Florida, and

      12       some of my superiors, James Mazarat (phonetic), got

      13       together with us to speak with us in the office about

      14       the deaf/blind equipment that FTRI wants to provide.  We

      15       are aware that FTRI has received funds to disburse

      16       equipment for the deaf/blind community.  So, James, have

      17       you gotten in touch with or spoken with Kathy Zarate

      18       (phonetic) about specific equipment yet?

      19                 MR. FORSTALL:  Yes, we have.  I have.  And I

      20       met with Kathy a couple of weeks ago, and she is very

      21       aware of the program.  And it is our intention to

      22       continue working with Kathy Zarate.  We want her to be

      23       our primary point of contact for this program, because

      24       she has been working with FTRI for the last two years

      25       and training individuals on the deaf/blind communicator.
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       1       So it is our expectation to continue working with Kathy,

       2       and, of course, the Florida Deaf/Blind Association.

       3                 MR. CASEY:  Any other questions?

       4                 MS. RHODES:  Okay.  And for your information,

       5       James, this is Cheryl, Kathy will be coming up to New

       6       York on November 11th for a one-week assignment where

       7       she works with a group of people that work with

       8       technology.  It's called the technology forum, and Kathy

       9       will go and gather some information and learn what she

      10       can from them and make the most of the equipment that

      11       will apply to the deaf/blind in Florida.

      12                 So, James, you might want to get ahold of

      13       Kathy after she comes back from New York to see what she

      14       has learned.  That's just an FYI to you.

      15                 MR. FORSTALL:  Thank you, Cheryl.  Just for

      16       your information, Kathy had contacted me when this

      17       program was first announced, and we have agreed to

      18       assist Kathy in going to this training, so we are very

      19       well aware of it.  And we felt like it was very

      20       important for Kathy to be there to get this training

      21       because we feel like it will assist FTRI with the new

      22       program, the new national program.  So we are very aware

      23       of that, and thank you for reminding me to share with

      24       everybody.

      25                 MS. RHODES:  Thank you, as well, James.
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       1                 MR. CASEY:  Any other questions for James with

       2       FTRI?  Okay.  Since there are no more questions, I want

       3       to go ahead and take about a five-minute break and then

       4       we can start Sprint's presentation.  Thank you.

       5                 (Recess.)

       6                 MR. CASEY:  If everyone could take their

       7       seats, we can get started again.

       8                 Our next presentation will be by Missy McManus

       9       of Sprint Relay.  And, Missy, I will turn it over to

      10       you.

      11                 MS. McMANUS:  Hello, everyone.  I'm happy to

      12       be here.  Before I go ahead with my presentation, one of

      13       our Sprint interpreters recommended that I go to one of

      14       the Tallahassee restaurants called Kool Beans.  I'm not

      15       sure if you guys are aware of it, familiar with the

      16       restaurant.  Anyway, I said okay.  When I got to

      17       Tallahassee, I went to the restaurant.  I'm looking at

      18       the menu, and I didn't understand three-fourths of it,

      19       you know, all the different fancy names and the sauces

      20       and the cheeses.  And I'm like, okay.

      21                 There were three different waitresses that

      22       came up to me, and all of them knew how to finger spell.

      23       And I thought that was really interesting.  I thought

      24       that was cool.  So after the third waitress came up, I

      25       asked them, "How do you all know sign language, you
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       1       know?"  She said, "We have a deaf dishwasher that works

       2       there."  I thought that was really cool, you know,

       3       K-O-O-L.  It's probably five miles from here, so I

       4       really suggest that everybody go and try.

       5                 Okay.  Here is the agenda.  The TRS

       6       statistics.  CapTel statistics.  TRS Relay results.

       7       That one is from July 2010 to June 2011.  The outreach

       8       performance is from April to probably about a month ago

       9       in September.

      10                 CapTel customer service.  Wireless CapTel by

      11       Sprint.  That's a new program.  And Sprint Mobile IP.

      12       That is also new.

      13                 Next.  Okay.  I want you guys to go ahead and

      14       just look at this for a second.  We had a high rise in

      15       August, and then it kind of decreased a little, which is

      16       normal for the other states, as well.  Most of the other

      17       states decrease in the TRS minutes, and it started about

      18       several years ago.  And I'll let you guys look at the

      19       numbers.

      20                 That's probably from a year and a half, two

      21       years ago.  The total TRS session minutes is 3,433,244

      22       compared to last year's total average, which equals to

      23       an 8.8 percent decrease.  And this is also normal for

      24       other states.

      25                 The next page, Page 6.  This is for people who
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       1       use Relay.  The purple is TTY.  The gray is the Turbo

       2       Code, which is part of the TTY.  If you combine the two,

       3       you will see about 62 percent of the TTY users.  The

       4       blue is voice for the hearing people, and then the VCO

       5       is yellow, the voice carryover.  It tends to be a little

       6       high in our users.

       7                 Next page, Page 7.  You just saw the TRS

       8       session minutes, and now you see the total call volume.

       9       Sorry.  You can't wait for me to finish?

      10                 (Laughter.)

      11                 Okay.  Again, with the TRS minutes you see the

      12       decrease.  Okay.  Next page, page 8.  Two years ago we

      13       had a total call volume of -- the average was 59,578,

      14       and now you see this year's, which was a 13.9 percent

      15       decrease.  Every time TRS -- it was a 8.9 percent

      16       decrease, and now with the call volume decrease it's

      17       13.9 percent.  So that means the people that call into

      18       the Relay, it's less than the minutes.

      19                 Next page.  Now we are going to talk about the

      20       total CapTel session minutes, Page 10.  It's kind of

      21       level.  There's a little difference right here, if you

      22       see in December and January.  Most days of the month,

      23       you know, August, July also, but the calls increase

      24       because of Christmastime.  The different holidays, you

      25       know, people call family.
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       1                 MR. CASEY:  James has a question.

       2                 MR. FORSTALL:  I see that February is down.

       3       Is that because there is only 28 days in the month?

       4                 MS. McMANUS:  Yes, 28 days.  You know,

       5       sometimes it's 29 days, every four years.  But that's

       6       normal; it's appropriate for February.

       7                 MR. CASEY:  Missy, I have a question, too.

       8       Part of the decrease is due to the Commission not

       9       allowing roaming anymore for CapTel.  Is that correct?

      10                 MS. McMANUS:  Yes, that could be the

      11       difference also.  And another reason would be the

      12       customers transferring to CapTel 800i, which is not paid

      13       by the State of Florida.  So that could be a

      14       contributor.

      15                 Okay.  Next page.  Page 11, this is the CapTel

      16       minutes you see here.  The result is an 11.9 percent

      17       decrease in the CapTel minutes.  And, again, the same

      18       reason you mentioned, the roaming and the 800i.  And

      19       also, the wireless mobile devices, people have started

      20       to shift over to those.  And also if you remember the

      21       WebCapTel on the computers, which is part of the

      22       wireless system.  So we see a little decrease.

      23                 Next page, Page 12.  CapTel call volume.

      24       Again, the same idea as the minutes.  December and

      25       January have the highest.  It's pretty level, though,
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       1       with the minutes.

       2                 Next page, Page 13.  It's almost the same as

       3       the minutes.  It was an 11 percent decrease and now it

       4       is a 13 percent decrease in the CapTel call volume.

       5                 Next page.  We have an independent group that

       6       evaluates our agents that type to make sure that they

       7       are 60 words per minute and to see how many errors they

       8       have, if any, and the percent of typing accuracy.

       9       Paisley Group is an independent third-party group

      10       evaluator.

      11                 Page 15.  This is based on September's results

      12       because the month of October isn't over, so that's why

      13       we don't have October's information yet.

      14                 Okay.  We called 150 times, and however many

      15       agents were tested was 72.  The average word per minute

      16       for the agents was 81 -- about 82 words per minute,

      17       which is amazing, which is better than the 60 words per

      18       minute expected.  The number of errors was estimated to

      19       about two.  Suppose an agent is typing less than 60 plus

      20       words per minute.  They are retrained and reevaluated,

      21       again, immediately.

      22                 The history of the 60 plus words per minute.

      23       You see here it is close to 100 percent.

      24                 Next slide.  The top two here are the most

      25       important, the top two lines.  Okay.  You see here it
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       1       says the agent that has over 95 percent accuracy, little

       2       errors, is about 83 percent of our agents that are

       3       correctly typing.  Most of our agents type above

       4       60 words per minute, which is a required standard.  The

       5       verbatim accuracy means that the agent has to follow

       6       word-for-word.  We made 150 calls, and almost

       7       100 percent accurate with that agent following the words

       8       verbatim.

       9                 I would like to point out here there were 11

      10       instances -- how many people here can type 100, more

      11       than 100 words per minute?  So I was really impressed

      12       with this statistic here.  People just typing away.

      13                 This is spoken accuracy, and, again, almost

      14       100 percent all the time.  We had a dip here at

      15       99 percent and back up.  So almost every month we hit

      16       100 percent.

      17                 Next slide.  This is the outreach performed

      18       from April to this past September.

      19                 Next slide.  We went to the Florida

      20       Association of the Deaf conference, and FTRI asked us to

      21       go and be a sponsor.  We gave them mugs and cake and we

      22       had a booth there, and we had a fabulous contractor

      23       named Mary Moore -- I'm sure many of you, I know you two

      24       know her, but she is a wonderful -- she knows everything

      25       about Relay, she really does.  Probably more than I.
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       1                 One more time.

       2                 MR. FORSTALL:  I would like to add that Mary

       3       Moore is a contractor or a Sprint employee?  Is she an

       4       employee or a contractor?

       5                 MS. McMANUS:  She's a contractor.  She has a

       6       full-time job outside of Sprint, but when she can she

       7       goes and works for Sprint.  We're lucky because her

       8       full-time job is Monday through Friday, but most of our

       9       Sprint events are on the weekends.  So sometimes she

      10       will, you know, take time off from her full-time job.

      11       She has a lot of vacation days accumulated, so she will

      12       go to a customer or client's home and do some

      13       one-on-one.  You know, if it's a serious situation, if

      14       that customer can't -- knows nothing about Relay, she

      15       will go and sit down with them and explain it to them

      16       and take the time.  She is a very patient person.  She

      17       speaks, she signs.  I mean, she's just wonderful.

      18                 The MATA Expo in Kissimmee.  I just went to

      19       that about a month ago.  I really enjoyed it.  I went

      20       with Ken.  I'm not sure if you remember Ken Goulston.

      21       He used to be a Florida manager here.  And then Mary

      22       Moore, as well.  We were there all day and really

      23       enjoyed it.

      24                 Sometimes we'll call and speak with clients

      25       about the different Relay services that we provide, and
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       1       we are getting more and more questions about STS,

       2       speech-to-speech.

       3                 Next slide.  CapTel customer service.  We have

       4       new hours.  Slide 21.  This past June, a few months ago

       5       they expanded their hours of running to seven days a

       6       week.  In September here, you see, it became 24/7, not

       7       including holidays.

       8                 This was two days ago that this was released.

       9       So you guys are lucky.  You are the first group to know

      10       about it.  I'm very excited.

      11                 I didn't type this up right here, but I was

      12       reading it, and I had to laugh because I thought it was

      13       very appropriate for the RFP, you know, and the times.

      14       It says, "Hi, Terry.  Letting you know that I'm running

      15       a little late.  Could you please let everyone know that

      16       we have only a few hours left to submit our proposals?"

      17       And it just happened to be there.

      18                 Next slide.  You said that you had 24,000 new

      19       hard-of-hearing clients, and that's a very high number.

      20       There's a lot of hard of hearing people, and I think

      21       that they would really like this wireless CapTel by

      22       Sprint.  This is the actual look of it.  I have this on

      23       my pager and it looks exactly like this.  And it's

      24       beautiful.  I don't use it much, but when I do it is

      25       just beautiful.  I really like it.
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       1                 Next slide.  I'm sure that some of you have

       2       seen the bar code.  It's called a QR code.  If you have

       3       a bar code scanner on your phone or your device, you can

       4       just click that and it will pull up the WCS application,

       5       or you can go through the market icon.  The bar code is

       6       faster, but the market icon is also easy.  And it's

       7       free, of course.

       8                 Next slide.  You can see this is what it looks

       9       like when dialing the numbers.  You have your contact

      10       list, you have your history of calls, and voicemail.

      11                 Next slide.  You can also change the font and

      12       the size.  And I think that's great for the people that

      13       are losing their eyesight, as well.  Most of our senior

      14       citizen clients like the CapTel, because they are able

      15       to adjust the size, as well, and that's one way to do

      16       it.  And the color.  And voicemail you can see here.

      17                 And going back to this shot right here, once

      18       you make your edits, it will show in that box.  So if

      19       you like it or not, you can continue to change it until

      20       you're satisfied.

      21                 Okay.  Again, August 3rd, this is a new

      22       program.

      23                 MR. CASEY:  James has a question.

      24                 MR. FORSTALL:  Can you -- do you have a list

      25       of cell phones, mobile phones that Sprint CapTel will
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       1       work on?

       2                 MS. McMANUS:  Yes.  You can go to

       3       www.Sprint800.com and we have the different services,

       4       you know, that you can click WCS, the Wireless CapTel

       5       Services, and it will list the phones.  Or you can go to

       6       www.SprintRelaystore.com, either one.

       7                 MR. FORSTALL:  So it does not work on all cell

       8       phones, all smart phones?

       9                 MS. McMANUS:  Right, for now.  But, I mean, it

      10       doesn't work just on a Sprint phone, it can work on

      11       other provider's phones, as well.

      12                 MR. CASEY:  MaryRose has a question.

      13                 MS. SIRIANNI:  Back on the slide, it showed

      14       that it was an Android.  So is it on all Android?  So

      15       different providers that have Android?

      16                 MS. McMANUS:  It depends on their operation

      17       system, as well.  Recently we tried it and it did work

      18       and it will work.  It's a free service, so I think it's

      19       wonderful for hard-of-hearing or deaf people that feel

      20       comfortable speaking, also.

      21                 MR. CASEY:  Chris Littlewood has a question.

      22                 MR. LITTLEWOOD:  It will work on iPhone, also?

      23                 MS. McMANUS:  What iphone; 3, 4?

      24                 MR. CASEY:  Excuse me, could you repeat the

      25       answer to that last question?  Will it work on iphones?
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       1                 MS. McMANUS:  Yes.

       2                 MR. CASEY:  Thank you.

       3                 MS. McMANUS:  You have to go to either

       4       website, either Sprint800.com, or SprintRelaystore.com,

       5       and there's a list of the phones that will work with it.

       6       I mean, there is always phones being added and updated.

       7                 You guys are familiar with the Sprint mobile

       8       IP.  It's now available.

       9                 Next slide.  Okay.  Again, Sprint Mobile IP,

      10       it's available on some phones, not all.  Like I said, if

      11       you go to SprintRelaystore.com, they have a list of the

      12       phones that are compatible.

      13                 One thing that I would like to mention is that

      14       we have a cool website that everybody can use.  It's

      15       www.learnwithSprint.com, and it teaches you step-by-step

      16       instructions on how to use the wireless CapTel, the IP,

      17       the VRS, and the other services.  It's very clear, so I

      18       really recommend it.  It's learnwithSprint.com.

      19                 This is what the Sprint IP looks like.  It

      20       says nothing about proposals this time, so -- again,

      21       just instructions.  You can scan the bar code or

      22       download the app.

      23                 Remember, before using the Sprint Mobile IP

      24       you have to have a 10-digit number.  If you don't have

      25       one, you can register for one at www.mysprintrelay.com.
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       1                 I'm done.  Any questions?

       2                 MR. CASEY:  Any questions?

       3                 James has a question.

       4                 MR. FORSTALL:  I just wanted to make a comment

       5       that the difference between the WebCapTel and the IP is

       6       people using the WebCapTel are able to use their own

       7       voice and they can speak directly into the phone, but

       8       with the IP CapTel you have to type your response back.

       9                 MS. McMANUS:  Correct.  Right.  Deaf people

      10       prefer the VRS or the IP.  Whereas, hard-of-hearing

      11       people, they like to speak for themselves, the CapTel,

      12       the webtel, the WCS works better for them.

      13                 MR. CASEY:  Any other questions for Sprint?

      14                 Well, thank you, Missy, for your presentation.

      15                 MS. McMANUS:  Thank you.

      16                 MR. CASEY:  And now I'd like to open up the

      17       floor.  Are there any other issues that the committee

      18       would like to discuss?

      19                 Okay.  Hearing none -- hang on just a second,

      20       Mr. Littlewood may have a question.

      21                 MR. LITTLEWOOD:  This is Chris, again.  I just

      22       wanted to revisit the issue related to distribution of

      23       digital equipment through the Telecommunications Relay

      24       Distribution Program.  And I know that Senator Wise, as

      25       you mentioned earlier in your presentation, has made an
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       1       amendment to the state legislation that allows for

       2       upgrade to allow for mobile devices, but it didn't

       3       specifically mention anything about IP or digital

       4       technologies.  It only talks about mobile or radio

       5       devices.  And I was just concerned about adding

       6       ambiguity to the language of the new legislation that is

       7       being proposed, and I was wondering if there is anything

       8       we can do as an advisory council to provide

       9       clarification on the needs.

      10                 MR. CASEY:  The Senate bill does have one

      11       paragraph in there which mentions digital technology for

      12       Relay, and it talks about the new act.  It doesn't say

      13       what should be done about it, it just kind of describes

      14       the act.  My suggestion to you would be to go to the

      15       Florida Association for the Deaf.  I believe they are

      16       the sponsors that presented this to the senator.

      17                 As a body that is part of the legislature, we

      18       cannot lobby or make suggestions to the legislature.

      19       There are times when they ask us for clarifications or

      20       what will this bill mean to the consumers of Florida,

      21       and they will ask us questions, but we don't lobby at

      22       all.  That would be for entities such as the Florida

      23       Association for the Deaf, and I'm sure they would be

      24       glad to hear your comments.

      25                 MR. LITTLEWOOD:  Okay.  My comment then is
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       1       just this is not really a lobbying issue where it's

       2       education and clarification of what is needed.  And I

       3       just thought, you know, we would be able to advise them

       4       for the needs of the state.  I mean, part of the

       5       responsibility as I understood it for this advisory

       6       group is to provide advice and counsel to the PSC and to

       7       the state legislature for the needs, and I just want to

       8       make sure that the language is correct for any new

       9       legislation that is being proposed.

      10                 MR. CASEY:  If the legislature does come to

      11       us, of course, we certainly will bring that up asking

      12       what did you mean by putting that paragraph in there

      13       about digital technology.  Did you mean that we should

      14       start distributing digital phones now or digital

      15       equipment for the deaf and hard-of-hearing?  But we will

      16       take it up.

      17                 Do you have anything to offer, Cindy?

      18                 Go ahead.

      19                 MR. LITTLEWOOD:  Okay.  Well, my first comment

      20       is I still am unable to find anything in the existing

      21       law for 427 that states that digital equipment cannot be

      22       distributed.  I understand that the PSC has no

      23       jurisdiction over the Internet, and that is part of the

      24       issue.  I do understand that.  But what I would suggest

      25       is that along with mobile devices, or it talks about
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       1       radio devices in Senator Wise's bill, that the

       2       additional language of IP or Internet protocol

       3       technology and digital technology be added to that.  And

       4       I would think that we could make that suggestion as an

       5       advisory committee to a letter to the PSC and then to

       6       the legislature to let them know that this needs to be

       7       part of what the community needs.

       8                 MR. CASEY:  Cindy, do you have any suggestions

       9       on how they should go about that?  Should they send a

      10       letter to us, or maybe to Senator Wise, or the Florida

      11       Association for the Deaf?

      12                 MS. MILLER:  Right.  There are many options

      13       out there.  I think Senator Wise might want to hear it,

      14       since he's the sponsor.  Another option would be, as Bob

      15       said, going to the Florida Association for the Deaf.

      16       Another option would be the committee staff where the

      17       bill is going, which it was mentioned it was going to

      18       the Senate Communications Committee.  So there are many

      19       options.  Maybe, as Bob said, we are not really in the

      20       lobbying business, but you could send a letter to

      21       Senator Wise and cc us, carbon copy us.  So there are

      22       many options.

      23                 MR. CASEY:  I know that the Florida

      24       Association for the Deaf actually hired a consultant to

      25       work on this bill, and that may be the avenue to go.
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       1                 MR. LITTLEWOOD:  Okay.  I appreciate those

       2       comments.  I just maybe will share some e-mail with you,

       3       Bob, in the future that we can possibly pass on to the

       4       other members of this advisory group.  And what I am

       5       suggesting is if everybody that is on this advisory

       6       group is in agreement, then in addition to sending

       7       letters as an individual to the Florida Association of

       8       the Deaf, or to Senator Wise, or the state legislature

       9       as an individual, that as an advisory group for the PSC

      10       that we would be sending a letter.

      11                 MR. CASEY:  That would definitely be a good

      12       thing to do.  I believe -- are you still on the Florida

      13       Coordinating Council for the Deaf and Hard-of-Hearing?

      14       That may be another avenue.

      15                 MR. LITTLEWOOD:  Yes.  That was another

      16       comment that I wanted to make with regard to the Florida

      17       Coordinating Council for the Deaf and Hard-of-Hearing.

      18       The council has kind of been in limbo within the last

      19       six or seven months.  As many, if not all, are aware, it

      20       was one of the things that the governor cut in the

      21       budget moving forward into the next budget year.

      22                 However, the funds to continue the council

      23       were established, and working with the Department of

      24       Health and also in the future at least for the next

      25       fiscal year through the Department of Minority Affairs,
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       1       I believe.  And everything is still being worked out for

       2       that, but there is continuance for the council for at

       3       least another year.  And the council has expressed these

       4       same concerns with regard for digital equipment

       5       distribution to the people in the State of Florida.  And

       6       the reason for that is more and more digital systems are

       7       being used throughout the state:  Nursing homes,

       8       assisted care living facilities, things like that, where

       9       people that are hard-of-hearing, deaf or hard-of-hearing

      10       do not have access to telecommunications because the

      11       devices that are available through distribution are not

      12       compatible with the systems in the places that they

      13       live, or the expense does not allow them to do that.

      14                 So this question is brought to me at every

      15       council meeting, and that's one of the reasons why I

      16       continue to place them here today, and I will continue

      17       to follow up on the suggestions with Senator Wise and

      18       other members of the legislature.  I just ask, also,

      19       like I said, as an advisory board that we can continue

      20       to do that as a group to the PSC and also to the state

      21       legislature, again, understanding that we are not in the

      22       business of lobbying.  But this is not a lobbying issue.

      23       This is an education issue as far as what the people in

      24       the State of Florida need for equivalent access.

      25                 MR. CASEY:  One more thing that may have to be
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       1       addressed in the bill.  They did expand in the bill the

       2       surcharge, TRS surcharge to wireless.  However, if he is

       3       going to include digital equipment, it may have to be

       4       expanded, the surcharge, to IP, which the federal

       5       government just has done.  As a matter of fact, the

       6       order I went over today, they expanded the surcharge to

       7       VoIP providers.  So that may be another thing we need to

       8       address.

       9                 MR. LITTLEWOOD:  This is Chris, again.  Yes, I

      10       absolutely agree.  And that was one of the reasons why I

      11       wanted the addition of the additional two words for

      12       digital and IP technology.

      13                 MR. CASEY:  Thank you.  That was great input.

      14                 Does anyone else have any comments or

      15       questions?

      16                 If not, I would like to thank everybody for

      17       participation in this meeting, everybody on the phone

      18       and in person.  We appreciate it very much.

      19                 Thank you.

      20                 (The meeting concluded at 3:06 p.m.)
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